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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Both Jefferson County and its quiet county seat, Dandridge, were formed|
in the late eighteenth century. Most of the early buildings, which
range in date from the early to the late nineteenth century, are con-
centrated on three streets, Main, Meeting, and Gay Streets. The
proposed historic district encompasses this section which is bordered
on the east by Mill Street extended to the dike, on the south by the
dike, on the west by a line approximately 800 feet west of Gay Street,
and on the north by a line approximately 900 feet north of Meeting
Street.

mWithin the district are at least 26 buildings predating the twentieth
century, plus additional points of historical interest including two
early cemeteries. The Dandridge commercial area, along Gay and Main
streets, consists of early structures interspersed with groupings of
flat-roofed and nondescript twentieth century store buildings. Although
a few recent businesses also front Meeting Street, the district, with
its predominance of earlier buildings, and its plantings and occasional
openspaces, retains the atmosphere of a small but prosperous nineteenth
century eommunity\\
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The greatest modern influence on Dandridge was the creation of Douglas
Lake, aMVA project€which threatened inundation of the town in the
early 1940's until President Roosevelt intervened.  Providing a sur-
prising but not objectionable backdrop for the buildings\on the
southeast side of Main Street is a million-dollar dike of native stone
set in tons of solid earth.

Near the dike are two buildings of major importance, the Hickman House
and the Shepard Inn. Built in 1845, the two-story Hickman House with
double chimneys and stepped gables on each end, is the most distinguish
of several brick residences in the district. The building has been
adapted for use as a commnity center, city hall, public library, and
other offices. Directly across the street is the Shepard Inn, the
priginal 1820 section covered with a subdued Victorian frame front.
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Dominating the district is the Jefferson County Courthouse, built
in 1845 on the site of the original log courthouse. It is a sim
brick neo-classical building. Across Gay Street is the Hynds

north and east of the Hynds House is a sizeable landscaped
spring considered by some to be ideal for a small town park
east, the Hynds property joins the Revolutionary War Cemete¢wz
burial ground of several men who fought in the war.
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Another prominent building in the district is the Hopewell -<%?’ i \
Church, built in 1879. The red brick building curiously show

bf the Victorian age in which it was built. On the northwest edge
the district is the Fain House, a recently restored two-story red brick
structure with an l-wing. When built in 1845, it was considered one of
the most elegant dwellings in the area. A combinations smoke and
wash-house, and a row of slave quarters also remain on the property.
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The location of Dandridge along important early:f?a@g and sta
routes, resulted in the developmert of a small bﬁ%ﬁﬁéfije\qkﬁmunity
in the years before the Civil War.\ It also resulted“%ﬁié)bitizenry
prosperous enough to build substantial and sometimes fashionable
dwellings, which form the core of the proposed district.

In 1783, thirteen years before Tennessee became a state, the first
permanent white settlers were attracted to the Dandridge area by
the French Broad River and a good spring (located near the Hynds
House). Two years later, the Hopewell Presbyterian Church was
organized. By 1792, the settlemernthad grown to such an extent that
Governor William Blount designated the new county of Jefferson in
the Territory South of the Ohio River. Francis Dean, a wealthy
landowner, gave 50 acres for Dandridge which became the county seat
in 1793. It bears the distinction of being the only town in the
United States named for MarthaDandridge Washington.

Dandridge became a regular stop for boats carrying provisions up
and down the French Broad River. It was also a major stage stop
on the road between Abingdon, Virginia, and Knoxville, Tennessee,
as well as a road traveled by stock traders operating between
Tennessee and North Carolina. As a result, it had an abundance

of early taverns, three of which are still standing--the Roper
Tavern, Shepard's Inn, and the Hickman House. According to Eastin
Morris' Tennessee Gazetteer, published in 1834, Dandridge had by
that time 300 inhabitants, including "three lawyers, three doctors,
two divines, one academy, two schools, four stores, two taverns,
four blacksmiths, one bricklayer, two carpenters, three cabinetmakerg,
one painter, one hatter, two tailors, two shoemakers, one saddler,
two tanners, one wagonmaker, and one wheelwright." The list illus-
trates that the town had developed sufficiently to support a variety
of artisans as well as the usual and necessary professions. The
period through the 1850's continued to be prosperous because during
that decade several banks were established and the first newspaper
was published. After the Civil War, however, trade shifted to towns
and cities located on the railrcads and Dandridge began to decline.

Little is: known about the earliest structures in Dandridge, although
it is probably a safe assumption that they were log. When the
first frame or, brick buildings were built is also unknown. The
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8. SIGNIFICANCE (cont.)

majority of nineteenth century structures remaining in the proposed
district predate the Civil War and are in simple classical revival
styles. Although there is an occasional evidence of "gingerbread,"
later nineteenth century structures are modest in scale and almost
devoid of any ornament. There remains an obvious correlation between
the architecture of Dandridge and the economic and commercial growth
and decline of the town.
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